

# City and County of San Francisco YOUTH COMMISSION Executive Committee

## MINUTES

Wednesday, April 12, 2023 5:00 p.m.

### **IN-PERSON MEETING with REMOTE ACCESS**

**Members**: Emily Nguyen (Chair, D11), Ewan Barker Plummer (Vice Chair, Mayoral), Steven Hum (Legislative Affairs Officer, Mayoral), Raven Shaw (Legislative Affairs Officer, Mayoral), Gabrielle Listana (Communications & Outreach Officer, D6), Astrid Utting (Communications & Outreach Officer, D8).

Present: Ewan Barker Plummer, Steven Hum, Gabbie Listana, Astrid Utting.

Absent: Emily Nguyen (excused), Raven Shaw (excused).

Tardy: None.

The San Francisco Youth Commission's Executive Committee met in-person with remote access for public comment, on April 12, 2023, with Vice Chair Barker Plummer presiding.

### 1. Call to Order and Roll Call for Attendance

Chair Nguyen called the meeting to order at 5:35pm.

On the call of the roll:

Roll Call Attendance: 4 present, 2 absent.

Raven Shaw absent Gabrielle Listana present Astrid Utting present Steven Hum present Emily Nguyen absent Ewan Barker Plummer present



A quorum of the Executive Committee is present.

Officer Utting, seconded by Officer Listana, motioned to excuse the absences of Chair Nguyen and Officer Shaw. The motion carried by voice vote:

Voice Vote: 4 ayes, 2 absent.

Raven Shaw absent Gabrielle Listana aye Astrid Utting aye Steven Hum aye Emily Nguyen absent Ewan Barker Plummer aye

Action: absences excused for Chair Nguyen and Officer Shaw.

#### 2. Communications

Alondra Esquivel Garcia, Director of the SFYC, shared communications and meeting announcements with Commissioners.

#### 3. Approval of Agenda (Action Item)

No discussion, and no public comment.

Officer Utting, seconded by Officer Listana, motioned to approve the April 12, 2023 Executive Committee meeting agenda. The motion carried by voice vote:

Voice Vote: 4 ayes, 2 absent.

Raven Shaw absent Gabrielle Listana aye Astrid Utting aye Steven Hum aye Emily Nguyen absent Ewan Barker Plummer aye

Action: agenda approved.

4. Approval of Minutes (Action Item)



a. March 15, 2023 (Packet Materials)

No discussion, and no public comment.

Officer Listana, seconded by Officer Utting, motioned to approve the March 15, 2023 Executive Committee meeting minutes. The motion carried by voice vote:

Voice Vote: 4 ayes, 2 absent.

Raven Shaw absent Gabrielle Listana aye Astrid Utting aye Steven Hum aye Emily Nguyen absent Ewan Barker Plummer aye

Action: agenda approved.

b. Discussion and Debrief of March 20, 2023 and April 3, 2023 full Youth Commission meetings.

Vice Chair Barker Plummer said that he appreciated how quick the April 3rd meeting was. Vice Chair Barker Plummer shared feedback from Chair Nguyen since she isn't able to be present for the meeting.

5. Public Comment on matters not on Today's Agenda (2 minutes per comment)

No public comment.

- 6. Business (all items to follow discussion & possible action)
  - a. Review Commission Attendance

Director Garcia said the only urgent matter is regarding Commissioner Im's absences for the Civic Engagement and Education Committee, since she has now maxed out the allowable amount of absences. She will be considered to have resigned from CEEC at the following meeting since she will not be present for the special hearing with the Board of Supervisors' Youth, Young Adult, and their Families Committee later this month. Staff will discuss next steps and a new committee to join for Commissioner Im in the coming weeks.

b. Updates on Commission Outreach and Communications



i. Presenters: Gabrielle Listana & Astrid Utting, Communication and Outreach Officers

Officer Listana and Officer Utting are working to schedule presentations with school teachers in SFUSD. Chair Nguyen also asked in her notes for the 2023/24 recruitment flyer to be less wordy and to create a flyer for the virtual information session for April 19th.

- c. Updates on Recent Youth-Related Board of Supervisors/Mayor Legislation
  - i. Presenters: Steven Hum & Raven Shaw, Legislative Affairs Officers

Officer Hum said he wasn't able to make it to the previous LAO Check-In with staff. Staff reported which legislation the Youth Commission is currently reviewing for comment including the police overtime funding, San Francisco general plan amendment with the climate action plan, the Safer Schools Task Force, the human trafficking report, and several others. Specialist Zhan also said there are several upcoming hearings that the Youth Commission will be engaging in.

d. Debrief of Budget Presentation to BOS Budget & Appropriations Committee

Vice Chair Barker Plummer said that the budget presentation went well, but that it could be shorter and more of a general overview in the future. He added that the presentation should be around 30 to 45 minutes, instead of around the hour it took on March 22nd.

e. Youth Budget Town Hall Recap

Vice Chair Barker Plummer said he appreciated how well it went and the LGBT Center for hosting our event. Officer Utting said the presentation should probably be shorter to allow more discussion and listening from the public, and that the icebreakers should be towards the beginning to build a broader community vibe. Officer Utting said that she would prefer that we create a more intimate setting like Manny's or a similar location. Officer Listana said she thought it went well, and that the biggest topics she heard was about school safety and support for neurodivergent youth. Vice Chair Barker Plummer said that the biggest topic that came up for them was queer and trans youth homelessness, and he would love for them to attend. Staff also gave their feedback on the event.

f. Outreach and Distribution of BPP Reports



Specialist Zhan said that she has distributed the BPPs to all of the Board of Supervisors' offices, and their legislative aides have already been reviewing them and giving feedback. Director Garcia said she will be distributing them to the Mayor's Office soon. Specialist Ochoa said that he is putting together a distribution list of all of the city departments and community-based organizations, and they hope to be sent out by the Clerk's Office by the end of this month.

g. Youth Commission Recruitment

Staff have been working on sending out the recruitment flyer to community partners and organizations. Vice Chair Barker Plummer said that the sooner the YC can get the recruitment flyer posts up, the better. Director Garcia said staff would also be meeting with current commissioners to see who intends to apply for re-appointment next year, and who wants to help with the interview process. Specialist Ochoa said he will be printing out flyers for commissioners to distribute individually at the next full Youth Commission meeting.

h. Approval of Full YC April 17, 2023 Agenda

Vice Chair Barker Plummer amended the agenda to remove Items 7-10, which includes Letters of Support, Resolutions and Motions, Committee Reports, and Roll Call and Introductions, due to time constraints with the hearing and other pressing agenda items.

Vice Chair Barker Plummer, seconded by Officer Utting, motioned to approve the April 17, 2023 full Youth Commission meeting agenda. The motion carried by voice vote:

Voice Vote: 4 ayes, 2 absent.

Raven Shaw absent Gabrielle Listana aye Astrid Utting aye Steven Hum aye Emily Nguyen absent Ewan Barker Plummer aye

Action: April 17, 2023 FYC agenda approved.

### 7. Adjournment



There being no further business on the agenda, the Youth Commission's Executive Committee adjourned at 6:20pm.



# City and County of San Francisco YOUTH COMMISSION

## AGENDA

Monday, March 20, 2023 5:00 p.m.

IN-PERSON MEETING City Hall, Room 416 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place, San Francisco, CA 94102

## REMOTE ACCESS

WATCH: https://bit.ly/3mXSUAM

Password: youth

Remote public participation is available upon request for individuals who cannot attend in person due to disability. Making a request to participate remotely no later than one (1) hour prior to the start of the meeting helps ensure availability of the meeting link. Please email <u>youthcom@sfgov.org</u> and/or call at (415) 554 - 6464 for accommodations.

## Public Comment Call-In <u>1 (415) 655-0001 / Meeting ID: 2490 993 3980 # #</u> (press \*3 to enter the speaker line)

## (There will be public comment taken on each item on this agenda.)

Youth Commission membership includes:

Emily Nguyen (Chair, D11), Ewan Barker Plummer (Vice Chair, Mayoral), Steven Hum (Legislative Affairs Officer, Mayoral), Raven Shaw (Legislative Affairs Officer, Mayoral), Gabrielle Listana (Communications & Outreach Officer, D6), Astrid Utting (Communications & Outreach Officer, D8), Chloe Wong (D1), Allister Adair (D2), Reese Terrell (D3), Maureen Loftus (D4), Hayden Miller (D5), Ann Anish (D7), Yoselin Colin (D9), Vanessa Pimentel (D10), Yena Im (Mayoral), Tyrone S. Hillman III (Mayoral) and Safiyyah Mirza (Mayoral).

## 1. Call to Order and Roll Call for Attendance

2. Communications



- 3. Approval of Agenda (Action Item)
- 4. Approval of Minutes (Action Item)
  - a. April 17, 2023
- 5. Public Comment on matters not on Today's Agenda (2 minutes per comment)
- 6. **Resolutions** (Discussion and Possible Action)
  - a. [Gun Violence Restraining Orders Public Awareness] Resolution urging the City and County of San Francisco to improve and expand public awareness of Gun Violence Restraining Orders, particularly to middle school students, high school students, higher education students, educators, school administrators, and other school staff, and to to create a dedicated a team dedicated to processing and pursuing Gun Violence Restraining Order requests from members of the public. (Second Reading and Action Item)
    - i. Presenters: Commissioners Barker Plummer, Shaw, Colin; Utting, Nguyen, Pimentel
  - b. [Protected Bike Lanes and Safety Infrastructure Arguello Boulevard] Resolution urging the San Francisco Municipal Transportation Agency to install protected bike lanes and intersection safety improvements on Arguello Blvd from Golden Gate Park to the Presidio Gate, urging the Mayor and District 1 and 2 Supervisors to support protected bike lanes and intersection safety improvements on Arguello Blvd from Golden Gate Park to the Presidio Gate, urging the Presidio Trust to install physically protected bike lanes and intersection safety improvements from the Presidio Gate to Sheridan Avenue, and urging the Mayor and Board of Supervisors to urge the Presidio Trust to install physically protected bike lanes and intersection safety improvements from the Presidio Gate to Sheridan Avenue, and urging the Presidio Gate to Sheridan Avenue.
    - i. Presenters: Commissioners Miller and Barker Plummer
- 7. Prop G Survey (Discussion and Possible Action)
  - i. Presenter: Commissioner Pimentel and Commissioner Colin
- 8. Letter of Support (Discussion and Possible Action)
  - **a.** Department of Environment Budget Ask
    - i. Presenter: Commissioner Nguyen
  - **b.** Larkin Street Youth Services Budget Ask
    - i. Presenter: Commissioners Adair and Wong
  - **c.** AB 1520



- i. Presenter:
- **d.** SB 691

i. Presenter:

**e.** SCA 2

i. Presenter:

- **f.** AB 1497
  - i. Presenter:

## 9. Committee Reports (Discussion Item)

- a. Executive Committee
  - i. Legislative Affairs Officers
  - ii. Communication and Outreach Officers
  - iii. General Committee Updates
- **b.** Housing, Recreation, and Transit Committee
- c. Civic Engagement and Education Committee
- d. Transformative Justice Committee
- e. LGBTQ+ Task Force

## 10. Roll Call and Introductions (Discussion Item)

Roll call for introduction of resolutions, requests for hearings, letters of inquiry, and Commissioners' reports on their Commission related activities.

- **a.** Presenters: Commissioner Colin, Commissioner Im, Commissioner Wong, Commissioner Pimentel, Commissioner Hillman, Commissioner Listana, and Commissioner Barker Plummer
- **b.** Other Legislative Introductions
- **11. Staff Report** (Discussion Item)
- 12. Announcements (this includes Community Events)
- 13. Adjournment



Any materials distributed to the members of the Youth Commission within 72 hours of the meeting or after the agenda packet has been delivered to the members are available for inspection—along with minutes of previous Youth Commission meetings and all supplementary information—at the Youth Commission office during regular office hours (9am to 6pm, Monday—Friday). The Youth Commission office is at:

City Hall, Room 345 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place San Francisco, CA 94102 Phone: (415) 554-6446, Fax: (415) 554-6140 Email: youthcom@sfgov.org http://www.sfgov.org/yc

KNOW YOUR RIGHTS UNDER THE SUNSHINE ORDINANCE (Chapter 67 of the San Francisco Administrative Code) Government's duty is to serve the public, reaching its decisions in full view of the public. Commissions, boards, councils and other agencies of the City and County exist to conduct the people's business. This ordinance assures that deliberations are conducted before the people and that City operations are open to the people's review.

FOR MORE INFORMATION ON YOUR RIGHTS UNDER THE SUNSHINE ORDINANCE OR TO REPORT A VIOLATION OF THE ORDINANCE, CONTACT THE SUNSHINE ORDINANCE TASK FORCE, please contact:

Sunshine Ordinance Task Force City Hall, Room 244 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place San Francisco, CA 94102-4689 Phone: (415) 554-7724, Fax: (415) 554-5784 Email: sotf@sfgov.org

Copies of the Sunshine Ordinance can be obtained from the Clerk of the Sunshine Ordinance Task Force, at the San Francisco Public Library, and on the City's website at <u>http://www.sfgov.org.</u>

The nearest accessible BART station is Civic Center (Market/Hyde Streets). Accessible MUNI Metro lines are the F, J, K, L, M, N, T (exit at Civic Center for Van Ness Stations). MUNI bus lines also serving the area are the 5, 5R, 6, 7, 9, 9R, 19, 21, and 49. For more information about MUNI accessible services, call (415) 701-4485.

The ringing and use of cell phones, pagers, and similar sound-producing electronic devices are prohibited at this meeting. The Chair may order the removal from the meeting room of any person responsible for the ringing or use of a cell phone, pager, or other similar sound producing electronic device.

In order to assist the City's efforts to accommodate persons with severe allergies, environmental illnesses, multiple chemical sensitivity, or related disabilities, attendees at public meetings are reminded that other attendees may be sensitive to various chemical-based products. Please help the City accommodate these individuals.

To obtain a disability-related modification or accommodation, including auxiliary aids or services to participate in the meeting, please contact the Youth Commission [phone: 415-554-6464 email: <u>vouthcom@sfgov.org</u>] at least 48 hours before the meeting, except for Monday meetings, for which the deadline is 4:00 p.m. the previous Friday. Full Commission Meetings are held in Room 416 at City Hall, 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place in San Francisco. City Hall is accessible to persons using wheelchairs and other assistive mobility devices. Ramps are available at the Grove, Van Ness and McAllister entrances.

LANGUAGE INTERPRETERS: Requests must be received at least 48 hours in advance of the meeting to help ensure availability. Contact bos@sfgov.org or call (415) 554-5184.

AVISO EN ESPAÑOL: La solicitud para un traductor debe recibirse antes de mediodía de el viernes anterior a la reunion. Llame bos@sfgov.org or (415) 554-5184.

Paunawa: Ang mga kahilingan ay kailangang matanggap sa loob ng 48 oras bago mag miting upang matiyak na matutugunan ang mga hiling. Mangyaring tumawag ka sa (415) 554-5184.

翻譯必須在會議前最少四十八小時提出要求請電 (415) 554-7719.